
62ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13

Auditor General

Page 1 of 3

7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Parliament of Western Australia

DEPARTMENT OF MINES AND PETROLEUM

Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Department of Mines and
Petroleum.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash 
Flows, Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service, Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by 
Service, and Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the 
year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, including Administered transactions and balances. 

Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Department of Mines and Petroleum at 
30 June 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by the Department of Mines and Petroleum during the 
year ended 30 June 2013.

Controls exercised by the Department of Mines and Petroleum are those policies and 
procedures established by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities 
have been in accordance with legislative provisions.

Director General’s Responsibility for Controls
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law.

Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Department of Mines and Petroleum based on my audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
controls to ensure that the Department complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and 
implementation of relevant controls.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Mines and Petroleum are 
sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities 
have been in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2013.

Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Department of Mines and Petroleum for 
the year ended 30 June 2013.

The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.

Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to 
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance.

Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing and Assurance Standards. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Department of Mines and Petroleum are 
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly 
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements. 

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Department of Mines and Petroleum for the year ended 30 June 2013 included on the 
Department’s website. The Department’s management is responsible for the integrity of the 
Department’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the 
Department’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key 
performance indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other 
information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key 
performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are 
concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to 
refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key performance indicators to 
confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial statements and key 
performance indicators.

COLIN MURPHY
AUDITOR GENERAL 
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA
Perth, Western Australia
12 September 2013
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
DEPARTMENT OF MINES AND PETROLEUM DISCLOSURES AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE KEY 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Government Goal

Outcome Based Service Delivery

Responsibly managing the State’s finances through the 
efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging 

economic activity and reducing regulatory burdens on the 
private sector. 

Department Outcomes 
(measured through  
Effectiveness Indicators )

Responsible 
development of mineral 
and energy resources 
and protection of the 

community from the risk 
of dangerous goods

Encouragement 
of exploration and 

discovery of mineral 
and petroleum deposits 
and informed land-use 

planning

Department Services 
(measured through  
Efficiency Indicators )

Resources and 
dangerous goods 

regulation

Geoscience Information  
and advice
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Responsible development of mineral and energy resources and protection of the 
community from the risk of dangerous goods. 

The department directly contributes to responsible exploration and development of mineral and 
energy resources through its various regulatory functions. The department defines “responsible 
exploration and development” as that which is undertaken in a manner considerate of the following 
elements: 

•	 Timely	approvals	processes,	which	require	applicants	to	give	undertakings	in	relation	to	activity,	
expenditure, and environmental rehabilitation, amongst other aspects; and 

•	 Compliance	with	relevant	regulations	relating	to	the	management	of	equitable	and	secure	titles	
systems for the mining, petroleum and geothermal industries, worker and community safety, 
the environment, and collection of revenues from royalties.

These elements of responsibility are measured through our Key Effectiveness Indicators.

1. Percentage compliance identified in completed environmental regulatory activities

Environmental regulatory activities relate 
specifically to environmental compliance 
investigations. This indicator is a measure 
of the department’s capacity to administer 
and enforce the legislation concerning 
environmental management of exploration 
and mining activities by monitoring the 
extent to which operators are compliant 
and addressing issues identified through 
inspections and audits. 

The department is introducing several new 
approaches to inspections and compliance. 
During 2012-13, as part of the Reforming 
Environmental Regulation program, an online Annual Environmental Reporting system was 
introduced, that has decreased, to some extent, the number of field inspections that are required. 
Adopting a risk-based approach, inspectors can now concentrate on higher risk sites and this has 
been borne out by the decline in the number of compliant sites compared to the past two years. Of 
the 230 sites that were identified as possible inspection sites at the beginning of the year,  
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133 were subsequently rated as having a higher than normal risk potential and, therefore, these 
formed the basis of the inspection program.

The measure is calculated as the number of moderate to high risk sites inspected where no major 
environmental non-compliant action was necessary or issued, divided by total number of moderate 
to high risk sites with completed environmental inspections. The department defines compliant as 
those sites met all regulatory requirements, and no compliant action required. Whereas, major  
Non-compliant sites are those where proponent was issued a Direction to Modify, Stop Work Order 
or fine in lieu of forfeiture, or warning letter to improve the site within an agreed timeframe.

The results show that the percentage of compliance for 2012-13 has exceeded the budget target, 
which means that a better than expected result was achieved. This means that action is being taken 
against 15 sites through fines, direction to modify or stop work order. The variance in both budget 
and actual in 2012-13 as compared to previous years is due to the focus on higher risk sites.

In 2013-14, this KPI will be reported as KPI 1 – Percentage of compliance with regulated 
environment conditions.

2. Percentage approvals completed within agreed timeframes 

Consistent with the department’s role in the 
Government’s Lead Agency Framework, the 
department is specifically targeting the timely 
management of approvals. The department 
considers addressing approvals in a timely 
manner translates to responsibly developing 
mineral and petroleum resources. 

During the year, the department continued 
to perform strongly with respect to approval 
timeframes in: 

•	 94%	mining	titles	granted	within	 
65 business days of lodgement. 

•	 82%	mining	proposals	and	programme	of	works	approved	within	30	business	days.	

•	 99%	petroleum	environmental	proposals	approved	within	30	business	days.	

•	 52%	petroleum	well	and	survey	applications	approved	within	40	business	days.
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The 52 per cent result for petroleum well and survey applications approved was attributed to 
delays to environment approvals from increased reporting requirements. This has caused delays to 
processing of on-shore survey applications. In addition, land access and Native Title issues have 
increased the complexity of approvals of special prospecting authority application approvals.

The challenges in these two types of applications have impacted on department’s overall approvals 
performance, which otherwise remains well above budget and meeting the department’s goal for 
responsible regulation. 

In 2013-14, this indicator will be reported as KPI 2 – Percentage of applications completed within 
timelines.

3.  Percentage compliance identified in tenure activities (petroleum) that are monitored 
and approved

This measure reflects the function of the 
department in ensuring that proponents are 
compliant in the petroleum tenure activities 
undertaken. 

The measure is calculated as the number 
of total petroleum tenure applications 
approved divided by the total applications 
deemed compliant, excluding those 
applications otherwise dealt with tenure, 
such as refused, rejected, withdrawn or 
lapsed. 

In 2012-13, the total applications received 
declined from previous years due to 
economic instability, and the department was requested to defer processing by applicants, 
consequently fewer approvals were granted during the year.

This KPI will not be reported in 2013-14 and beyond as the volume of petroleum title applications 
are dealt with under other indicators.

Disclosures and Legal Compliance

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

%
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e

2010-11

% 54 49 33 48

2011-12 2012-13
2012-13
Budget



71ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13

4.  Percentage of inspections and audits completed under resources safety compliance 
monitoring program

Regulatory activities relate to mines, petroleum, 
and dangerous goods safety compliance 
monitoring. This indicator is a measure of 
the department’s efficiency in implementing 
its inspection and audit program for mines, 
petroleum, and dangerous goods safety 
following the introduction of safety reforms 
initiatives (RADARS).

The measure is calculated as the number of 
inspections and audits undertaken divided by 
the number of inspections and audits planned. 

Dangerous goods inspections and audits were 
on track, while petroleum, since assuming 
safety regulatory responsibilities for offshore operations in coastal water as of 1 January 2012, 
and increased exploration activities onshore, saw an increased number of assessment and audits 
undertaken, thus exceeding budget expectations.

A greater focus and emphasis on computer systems development to improve data management 
and provide industry with the ability to submit information online resulted in a revised inspection 
program for mine safety that focused on high risk activities and a slight reduction to lower risk 
activities. 

This indicator will not be reported from 2013-14, and has been replaced with KPI 3 – Percentage 
of compliance with regulated safety conditions
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The department measures its overall efficiency in delivery of these regulatory services through the 
following efficiency indicators: 

2010-11 
Actual

2011-12 
Actual

2012-13 
Actual

2012-13 
Budget

Cost per resources regulation service $887 $962 $1,193 $1,116

Commentary

Continued focus on increasing and improving regulatory services through reform, recruitment 
and system development saw the average cost per service go up marginally compared to prior 
years’, and the budget level.

2010-11 
Actual

2011-12 
Actual

2012-13 
Actual

2012-13 
Budget

Average weighted cost per safety regulatory 
service – minerals and energy

$1,596 $1,671 $1,685 $1,424

Average weighted cost per safety regulatory 
service – dangerous goods. 

$324
($485)

$743
($745)

$924 $481

Commentary

Ongoing recruitment of new staff as part of the safety reform initiatives, and providing them with 
comprehensive on-job-training training and a focus on new systems development has resulted in 
the average cost of safety regulatory service to exceed the budget level. 

Since 2011-12, following the review of the outcome-based service delivery structure, this 
indicator was weighted for the first time, and will be merged as one indicator in 2013-14.

*Figures within brackets illustrate the non-weighted cost per service.

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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ENCOURAGEMENT OF EXPLORATION AND DISCOVERY OF MINERAL AND 
PETROLEUM DEPOSITS AND INFORMED LAND USE PLANNING. 
The department works to elucidate the geological framework of Western Australia and reveal the 
potential for mineral and petroleum resources, consequently encouraging continued exploration 
and development of these resources. The department’s assessments of mineral and petroleum 
resources and resource potential supports Government decision making and assists and advises 
on a range of community needs, including urban development planning and land use. 

The department measures its success towards achieving this outcome against the following 
effectiveness indicator: 

5. The extent to which stakeholders agree the department’s geoscience information and 
advice encourages exploration and discovery and informs land use planning

This indicator represents an averaged 
customer rating given by industry-based 
Technical Advisory sub-committees tabled 
through the Geological Survey Liaison 
Committee. 

Geoscience information products and 
geological exploration information services 
are rated twice yearly for quality and 
relevance, against a five-point scale by 
the two subcommittees. They are asked 
to provide guidance for future programs 
and feedback on past performance of the 
department. 

The 2012-13 high rating demonstrates 
the how overall the sub-committees were 
pleased with the high standard of product and services of Geological Survey.
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GEOSCIENCE INFORMATION AND ADVICE
The department achieves this outcome through the maintenance and provision of up-to-date 
geological resources, with products and services including: 

•	 Acquiring	new	geoscience	and	mineral	energy	resource	information;	

•	 Providing	access	to	a	developing	archive	of	geoscientific	and	resource	exploration	information;	

•	 Assessment	of	mineral	and	petroleum	resources	and	resource	potential	as	a	basis	for	decision	
making by government; and 

•	 Assistance	and	advice	on	land	use	matters.

2010-11 
Actual

2011-12 
Actual

2012-13 
Actual

2012-13 
Budget

Average weighted cost per geoscience 
information product and service units

$221,160 $292,562 $233,198 $234,750

Commentary

The weighted total published products (WTPP) figure is slightly higher than normal. This is 
mainly due to the airborne geophysical survey program where data was acquired and paid for in 
2011-12, but processed for release in 2012-13. WTPP units are credited on release of the data. 
These WTPP credits, combined with a slightly smaller Exploration Incentive Scheme budget, 
were the main contributors to the lower cost per unit of WTPP for 2012-13.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income   

For the year ended 30 June 2013 2013 2012
    Note $000 $000
COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 6 88 859      81 602      
Supplies and services 7 41 658      51 189      
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 3 916        3 307        
Accommodation expenses 9 4 908        4 537        
Grants and subsidies 10 4 714        4 966        
Other expenses 11  407           167          
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 14  164          -           
Total cost of services 144 626    145 768    

Income
Revenue 
User charges and fees 12 53 394      53 682      
Other revenue 13 2 809        1 517        
Total revenue 56 203      55 199      

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 14 -            47            
Total Gains -            47            
Total income other than income from State Government 56 203      55 246      
NET COST OF SERVICES 88 423      90 522      

Income from State Government 15
Service appropriation 79 987      78 222      
Services received free of charge 2 273        1 381        
Royalties for Regions Fund 13 177      20 283      
Total income from State Government 95 437      99 886      
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 7 014        9 364        

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset  revaluation surplus 28 2 111        9 413 
Gains recognised directly in equity -            306          
Total other comprehensive income 2 111        9 413 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 9 125        18 777 

 

See also the 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service'.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Department of Mines and Petroleum
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2013 2013 2012
Note $000 $000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 29 37 395      31 607      
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16 6 360        3 563 
Receivables 17 10 917      12 220      
Amounts receivable for services 18  910           884          
Other current assets 19 1 681        1 106        
Total Current Assets 57 263      49 380      

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16 2 560        2 100        
Amounts receivable for services 18 13 912      13 088      
Property, plant and equipment 20 148 736    149 054    
Intangible assets 21 1 424        1 987        
Total Non-Current Assets 166 632    166 229    
TOTAL ASSETS 223 895    215 609    

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 23 4 569        5 290        
Other current liabilities 24 1 979        1 775        
Revenue received in advance 25 1 575        5 128        
Provisions 27 18 938      17 294      
Total Current Liabilities 27 061      29 487      

Non-Current Liabilities
Amounts due to the Treasurer 26  963          -           
Provisions 27 3 997        3 318        
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4 960        3 318        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 32 021      32 805      

NET ASSETS 191 874    182 804    

EQUITY 28
Contributed equity 55 930      55 985      
Reserves 113 139    111 028    
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 22 805      15 791 

TOTAL EQUITY 191 874    182 804    

See also the 'Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service'.
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Department of Mines and Petroleum
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Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Accumulated 
Contributed surplus/ Total

Note  equity Reserves (deficit) equity
$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2011 28 55 684          101 615    6 427 163 726 
Surplus/(deficit) -                -            9 364 9 364 

-                9 413        -                  9 413       
-                9 413        9 364              18 777     

Capital appropriations -                -            -                  -           
Other contributions by owners  306              -            -                   306         
Distributions to owners (  5) -            -                  (  5)

Total  301              -            -                   301         
Balance at 30 June 2012 55 985          111 028    15 791 182 804   

Balance at 1 July 2012 28 55 985          111 028    15 791 182 804   
Surplus/(deficit) -                -            7 014              7 014       
Other comprehensive income -                2 111        -                  2 111       

Total comprehensive income for the period -                2 111        7 014              9 125       
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Capital appropriations 1 325            -            -                  1 325       
Distributions to owners (1 380) -            -                  (1 380)

Total (  55) -            -                  (  55)
Balance at 30 June 2013 55 930          113 139    22 805 191 874   

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners in their capacity as 

Other comprehensive income
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2013 2012
$000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation 78 253      76 485      
Capital appropriations 1 325        -           
Holding account drawdowns  884           854          
Royalties for Regions Fund 13 177      20 283      

Net cash provided by State Government 93 639      97 622      

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (89 129) (82 477)
Supplies and services (40 281) (48 725)
Accommodation (2 882) (2 459)
Grants and subsidies (4 715) (6 072)
Other payments -           ( 104)
GST payments on purchases (4 794) (6 708)

Receipts
User charges and fees 46 568      50 286      
Grants and contributions 2 684        1 316        
GST receipts on user charges and fees  234           740          
GST receipts from taxation authority 5 461        5 848        
Other receipts 3 763         390          

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 29 (83 091) (87 965)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets -            69            
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (2 466) (1 422)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (2 466) (1 353)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings  963          

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities  963          -           

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9 045        8 304        
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 37 270      28 966      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END THE PERIOD 29 46 315      37 270      

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Department of Mines and Petroleum
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses 
Employee benefits expenses 70 998              65 194              17 861              16 408              88 859              81 602              
Supplies and services 25 946              23 031              15 712              28 158              41 658              51 189              
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 046                2 552                 870                   755                  3 916                3 307                
Accommodation expenses 3 863                3 790                1 045                 747                  4 908                4 537                
Grants and subsidies  182                   255                  4 532                4 711                4 714                4 966                
Other expenses  351                   119                   56                     48                     407                   167                  
Loss on disposal of other assets  130                  -                     34                    -                     164                  -                    
Total cost of services 104 516            94 941              40 110 50 827              144 626            145 768            

Income
User charges and fees 51 159              53 582              2 235                 100                  53 394              53 682              
Other revenue 2 078                1 443                 731                   74                    2 809                1 517                
Gain on disposal of non-current assets -                     47                    -                    -                    -                     47                    
Total income other than income from State Government 53 237              55 072              2 966                 174                  56 203              55 246              
NET COST OF SERVICES 51 279 39 869 37 144 50 653 88 423 90 522

Income from State Government
Service appropriation 54 242              51 660              25 745              26 562              79 987              78 222              
Resources received free of charge 1 437                1 085                 836                   296                  2 273                1 381                
Royalties for Regions Fund  637                   336                  12 540              19 947              13 177              20 283              
Total income from State Government 56 316              53 081              39 121              46 805              95 437              99 886              

SURPLUS/DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD 5 037 13 212 1 977 (3 848) 7 014 9 364

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Schedule of Income and Expenses by Services

Resource Sector and 
Dangerous Goods Regulation

Geoscience Information and 
Advice

Total
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Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service        

As at 30 June 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets
Current Assets 45 645               38 785               11 618               10 595               57 263               49 380               
Non-current Assets 129 171             128 789             37 461               37 440               166 632             166 229             

Total assets 174 816             167 574             49 079               48 035               223 895             215 609             

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 21 907               24 758               5 154                 4 729                 27 061               29 487               
Total non-current Liabilities 4 126                 2 673                  834                    645                   4 960                 3 318                 

Total liabilities 26 033               27 431               5 988                 5 374                 32 021               32 805               

NET ASSETS 148 783             140 143             43 091               42 661               191 874             182 804             

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Resource Sector and Dangerous 
Goods Regulation

Geoscience Information and 
Advice

Total

Department of Mines and Petroleum
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates

For the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2013 2013 2012
Estimate Actual Variance Actual Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Delivery Services

79 541 79 126 ( 415) 79 126 77 412 1 714

Section 25 transfer of service appropriation
-               -           -             -           -           -              

Amount authorised by Other Statutes
- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975  848  861  13  861  810  51

80 389 79 987 ( 402) 79 987 78 222 1 765 

Capital
Item 112 Capital appropriations 1 325 1 325 -             1 325 -           1 325

Administered Transactions
5 273 5 273 -             5 273 19 886 (14 613)

Amount authorised by other statutes
 - Petroleum (Submerged Lands) Act 1982 2 470 3 054  584 3 054 4 391 (1 337)

Total Administered Transactions 7 743 8 327  584 8 327 24 277 (15 950)
GRAND TOTAL 89 457 89 639  182 89 639 102 499 (12 860)

Details of Expenses by Service

110 644 104 516 (6 128) 104 516 94 941 9 575
Geoscience Information and Advice 42 255 40 110 (2 145) 40 110 50 827 (10 717)
Total Cost of Services 152 899 144 626 (8 273) 144 626 145 768 (1 142)
Less total income 51 228 56 203 4 975 56 203 55 246  957
Net Cost of Services 101 671 88 423 (13 248) 88 423 90 522 (2 099)

(21 282) (8 436) 12 846 (8 436) (12 300) 3 864

80 389         79 987      ( 402) 79 987      78 222      1 765 

Capital Expenditure
Purchase of non-current physical assets 1 325 1 325 -             1 325 -           1 325
Capital appropriations 1 325           1 325        -             1 325 -           1 325 

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Resources Sector and Dangerous Goods 
Regulation

Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and 
superannuation.

Total appropriations provided to deliver
services

Adjustments

Item 13 Net amount appropriated to deliver
services

Total appropriations provided to deliver
services

- From Department of Commerce 

Item 14 Administered grants, subsidies
 and other transfer payments
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates

For the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2013 2013 2012
Estimate Actual Variance Actual Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Details of Income Estimates

Income disclosed as Administered Income

Commonwealth Grants
South West Hub 20 800 -           (20 800) -           -           -              

Royalties
Petroleum - State   12 900 18 024 5 124   18 024 18 027 ( 3)
Iron Ore  4 264 500 3 852 561 (411 939)  3 852 561  3 776 076 76 485
Diamonds   15 300 17 732 2 432   17 732 15 938 1 794
Alumina   80 000 64 764 (15 236)   64 764 68 185 (3 421)
Mineral sands   24 300 26 632 2 332   26 632 19 923 6 709
Nickel   96 800 88 637 (8 163)   88 637 92 089 (3 452)
Gold   218 100 213 967 (4 133)   213 967 234 316 (20 349)
Other   159 400 144 596 (14 804)   144 596 118 797 25 799
Lease rentals   81 900 90 999 9 099   90 999 90 614  385
Total Royalties  4 953 200  4 517 912 (435 288)  4 517 912  4 433 965 83 947

Regulatory Fees
Regulatory Fees  10 000        6 404 (3 596) 6 404 1 866 4 538

10 000         6 404        (3 596) 6 404 1 866 4 538
Law courts

Fines Infringement penalties: -               -             -              
-               -           -             -           -           -              

Other
Commonwealth Grants -               6 500 6 500 6 500 2 700 3 800
Appropriations 7 743 8 327  584 8 327 24 277 (15 950)
Other Revenue  526  788  262  788 1 524 ( 736)
GRAND TOTAL 4 992 269    4 539 931 (452 338) 4 539 931 4 464 332 75 599

Note 36 'Explanatory statement' provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2013 
and between the actual results for 2013 and 2012. 
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Department of Mines and Petroleum 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards 
 
General 
 
The department’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 have been prepared 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting 
Standards’ includes standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standard Board (AASB).  
 
The department has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting 
Standards from their operative dates.  
 
Early adoption of standards 
 
The department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that 
have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the department for the annual reporting 
period ended 30 June 2013. 
 
Note 2.Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
(a) General statement 
 
The department is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as 
applied by the Treasurer's Instructions.  Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's 
instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.   
 
The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's instructions impose legislative 
provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and 
other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.  
 
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the 
reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements. 
 
(b) Basis of preparation  
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the 
historical cost convention, except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair 
value. 
 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been 
consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.  
 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to 
the nearest thousand dollars ($'000). 
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Department of Mines and Petroleum 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

 
Note 3 'Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies' discloses 
judgements that have been made in the process of applying the department’s accounting 
policies resulting in the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. 
 
Note 4 'Key sources of estimation uncertainty' discloses key assumptions made concerning 
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 
(c) Reporting entity 
 
The reporting entity comprises the department. 
 
Mission 
 
The department’s mission is growth of the resource sector which maximises long-term 
benefits to the Western Australian community. 
 
The department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriation. A net appropriation 
agreement between the Treasurer and the Accountable Authority is in place to allow the 
department to retain its operating revenue. Details of expenditure and revenues retained as 
per the agreement are disclosed in note 2(e). 
 
Services 
 
The department provides the following services: 
 
Service 1: Resource Sector and Dangerous Goods Regulations 
 
The department is charged with ensuring that the resources industry conducts its business in 
a responsible manner and that the community receives a fair return for its resources.  The 
department contributes to responsible development through effective regulation of the 
resources sector, including the timely processing of applications, and mining and petroleum 
safety regulation.  It also facilitates and manages access to land and offshore areas for the 
exploration and development of mineral and energy deposits. 
 
The department administers the Dangerous Goods Safety Act 2004, covering the 
manufacture, storage, handling, transport and use of dangerous goods, including the 
operations of major hazard facilities. 
 
Service 2: Geoscience Information and Advice 
 
The department provides benefits to the Western Australian community through the 
provision of public geological information to encourage exploration, and the promotion of 
opportunities for high risk private sector investment in mineral and energy exploration and 
development, thereby sustaining investment in the industry for future generations.   
 
The department maintains an up-to-date geological archive of the State and its mineral and 
petroleum resources, with products and services including: 
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• Acquiring new geoscience and mineral and energy resource information; 
• Providing access to a developing archive of geoscientific and resource exploration 

information; 
• Assessment of mineral and petroleum resources and resource potential as a basis 

for decision making by Government; and 
• Assistance and advice on land use matters. 

 
The department administers assets, liabilities, income and expenses on behalf of 
Government which are not controlled by, nor integral to the function of the department. 
These administered balances and transactions are not recognised in the principal financial 
statements of the department but schedules are prepared using the same basis as the 
financial statements and are presented at note 42 'Disclosure of administered income and 
expenses by service' and note 43  'Administered assets and liabilities'. 
 
(d) Contributed equity 
 
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector 
Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a 
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) 
as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be 
recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as 
contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public 
Sector Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed equity. 
 
The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of 
administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers 
are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. 
 
(e) Income 
 
Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable.  Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: 
 
User Charges and Fees 
 
Revenue from licences and other regulatory fees are recognised at the time the money is 
received. Where a licence fee extends over multiple years then future year revenue is 
treated as prepaid revenue. 
 
Levy  
 
Mines Safety and Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Safety Levy revenue is recognised in 
the period to which the levy relates. 
 
Sale of goods 
 
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured 
reliably. 
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Provision of services 
 
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of 
completion of the transaction. 
 
Interest 
 
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  
 
Service Appropriation 
 
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the 
department gains control of the appropriated funds. The department gains control of 
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to 
the ‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding account) held at Treasury. 
 
Net Appropriation Determination 
 
The Treasurer may make a determination providing for prescribed receipts to be retained for 
services under the control of the department.  In accordance with the determination specified 
in the 2012-13 Budget Statements, the department retained $56.2 million in 2013 ($55.2 
million in 2012) from the following: 
 
• Proceeds from user fees, charges and levies. 
• Other departmental revenue. 
 
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 
 
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the department obtains control over the assets 
comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received. 
 
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at 
their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be 
reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated. 
 
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which 
the department obtains control over the funds. The department obtains control of the funds 
at the time the funds are deposited into the department’s bank account. 
 
Gains 
 
Realised or unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains 
arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 
 
Administered revenue recognition  
 
Royalties 
 
Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the relevant 
legislation and agreements. A liability to pay arises upon receipt of a declaration and/or 
payment based on the self-assessment method and also upon issue of an amended 
assessment resulting from a verification process.  
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Royalties include: 
 

• Mineral Royalties payable under the Mining Act 1978 and various State Agreements. 
• Petroleum Royalties payable under various Acts and Agreements 

 
Mining Leases and Licenses   
 
Mining leases and license applications are recognised at the time the money is received. 
 
(f) Translation of foreign currency transactions 
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transactions occur. Exchange gains and losses are brought to account in determining the 
result for the year. 
 
(g) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
 
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and 
the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.  Items of 
property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 
 
For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost 
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition of an asset, the revaluation model is used for the 
measurement of land and buildings and historical cost for all other property, plant and 
equipment.  Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation 
(buildings only) and accumulated impairment losses.  All other items of property, plant and 
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 
 
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined 
on the basis of current market buying values determined by reference to recent market 
transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the 
accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and 
the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 
 
In the absence of market-based evidence, the fair value of land and buildings is determined 
on the basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where 
land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the 
cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the 
depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the  
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depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated 
depreciation are restated proportionately. 
 
Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the 
carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset's fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. 
 
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to 
apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated useful life. Professional 
judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction 
between market type assets and existing use assets. 
 
De-recognition 
 
Upon disposal or de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus. 
 
Asset Revaluation Surplus 
 
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the 
revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 20 'Property, plant and equipment'.  
 
Depreciation  
 
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic 
benefits. 
 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed 
annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 
 
Buildings   33-50 years 
Furniture   5 years 
Office equipment  3-5 years 
Computer servers  3 years 
Software (a)  3-5 years 
Scientific  equipment  7 years 
Motor vehicles  3-5 years 
Plant and equipment  5-25 years 

 
(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 
 
Land is not depreciated.  
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(h) Intangible assets 
 
Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
 
Acquisitions of intangible assets over $200,000 or more and internally generated intangible 
assets costing $200,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed 
(amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately 
expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
 
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for 
nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 
 
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  
 
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the 
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.  
All intangible assets controlled by the department have a finite useful life and zero residual 
value.  
 
The expected useful life for each class of intangible asset is: 
  
Software (a) 3 to 10 years 
  
(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of related hardware. 
 
Computer Software 
 
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and 
equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an 
intangible asset. Software costing less than $200,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.  
 
Web site costs 
 
Web site costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the 
acquisition or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. 
Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a web site, and 
ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in 
building or enhancing a website, to the extent that they represent probable future economic 
benefits that can be reliably measured, are capitalised. 
 
(i) Impairment of assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, 
the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable 
amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written 
down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a 
previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a 
revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the department is a not-for-profit  
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entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 
 
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is 
materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant 
change in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the 
asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling 
replacement costs. 
 
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use 
are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is 
any indication of impairment. 
 
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less 
costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the 
asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair 
value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined 
by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and 
the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.  
 
(j) Leases  
 
Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised, at the commencement of the 
lease term, as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the fair value of the leased item or, if 
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the 
lease. The assets are disclosed as plant, equipment and vehicles under lease, and are 
depreciated over the period during which the department is expected to benefit from their 
use. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the 
reduction of the outstanding lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
 
Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this 
represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased properties. 
 
(k) Financial instruments 
 
In addition to cash, the department has two categories of financial instrument: 
 

• Loans and receivables; and 
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

 
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

 Financial Assets 
o Cash and cash equivalents 
o Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
o Receivables 
o Amounts receivable for services  

 
 Financial Liabilities 

o Payables 
o Amounts due to the Treasurer 
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Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally 
equates to the transaction cost or the face value.  Subsequent measurement is at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 
 
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face 
value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not 
required as the effect of discounting is not material. 
 
(l) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted 
cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of 
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.   
 
(m) Accrued salaries 
 
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial 
year.  Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end.  The 
department considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair 
value. 
 
The accrued salaries suspense account (refer note 16 'Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents') consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of 10 
financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27 pay 
days occur instead of the normal 26.  No interest is received on this account.   
 
(n) Amounts receivable for services (holding account) 
 
The department receives funding on an accrual basis.  The appropriations are paid partly in 
cash and partly as an asset (holding account receivable).  The accrued amount receivable is 
accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements 
and asset replacement. 
 
(o) Receivables  
 
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for uncollectible 
amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis 
and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  
The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 
evidence that the department will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is 
equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.  
 
(p) Payables 
 
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the department becomes obliged to 
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount 
is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally settled 30 days. 
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(q) Provisions 
 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  
 
Provisions - employee benefits 
 
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees' services up 
to the end of the reporting period. 
 
Annual Leave 
 
The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to 
be paid when the liability is settled. 
 
Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage 
and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The 
expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.  
 
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the department does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 
reporting period. 
 
Long service leave 
 
The liability for long service leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts 
expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 
 
Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time 
of settlement. 
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage 
and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The 
expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
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Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the 
department does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service 
leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the department has an 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed 
the requisite years of service. 
 
Deferred leave 
 
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into 
an agreement to self-fund an additional 12 months leave in the fifth year of the agreement. 
The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth 
year. This liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is 
reported as a current provision as employees can leave the scheme at their discretion at any 
time. 
 
Superannuation 
 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer 
public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with 
legislative requirements.  Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public 
sector employees, varies according to commencement and implementation dates. 
 
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme 
closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a 
defined benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members since 1995.   
 
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either 
the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 
2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, 
existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became able to choose their 
preferred superannuation fund. The department makes concurrent contributions to GESB or 
other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation 
schemes extinguish the Department’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of 
employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS. 
 
The GSS is a defined scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government 
reporting. However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the 
concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the agency to GESB extinguishes 
the agency's obligation to the related superannuation liability. 
 
The department has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for 
the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to 
members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All 
other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the department to the 
GESB.  
 
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is 
recouped from the Treasurer for the employer's share. 
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Provisions - other 
 
Employment on-costs  
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to 
which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other 
expenses' and are not included as part of the department’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. 
The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'.  
 
(r) Superannuation expense 
 
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises of 
employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the GESBS, or 
other superannuation funds. The employer contribution paid to the GESB in respect of the 
GSS is paid back into the Consolidated Account by the GESB. 
 
(s) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal value 
 
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as income at 
the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably 
measured and the Department would otherwise pay for. A corresponding expense is 
recognised for services received. Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 
 
Assets or services are received from other State Government agencies are separately 
disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
(t) Comparative figures 
 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures 
presented in the current financial year. 
 
(u) Amounts due to the Treasurer 
 
The amount due to the Treasurer is in respect of a Treasurer’s Advance. Initial recognition 
and measurement, and subsequent measurement, is at the amount repayable. Although 
there is no interest charged, the amount repayable is equivalent to fair value as the period of 
the borrowing is for less than 12 months with the effect of discounting not being material. 
 
Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies 
 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the 
application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements. The department evaluates these judgements regularly. 
 
Operating lease commitments 
 
The department has entered into a number of leases for branch office accommodation. 
Some of these leases are of a temporary nature and it has been determined that the lessor 
retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, these 
leases have been classified as operating leases. 
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Note 4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 
Long Service Leave 
 
Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the department's long service leave 
provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and 
expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on 
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 
 
Valuation of land and buildings 
 
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to 
apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated useful life. Professional 
judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction 
between market type assets and existing use assets 
 
Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 
 
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 
The Department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 that impacted on the Department. 

AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of 
Other Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 
134, 1039 & 1049] 

This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive 
income on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or 
loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). There is no financial 
impact. 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements.  Consequently, the Department has not applied early any of the following 
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Department. 
Where applicable, the Department plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from 
their application date 
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  Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a 
number of changes to accounting treatments  

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and 
Transition Disclosures amended the mandatory application 
date of this Standard to 1 January 2015.  The Department 
has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard to 1 Jan 2015. The Department has 
not yet determined the application or the potential impact 
of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

This Standard supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation 
– Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number of 
changes to accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by 
one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Transition Guidance and Other Amendments. 
The Department has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 

This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint 
Ventures, introducing a number of changes to accounting 
treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by 
one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  The 
Department has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2014 

 
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under 
AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by 
one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.   
The Department has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2014 
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  Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after 

AASB 13  Fair Value Measurement 

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for 
measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures 
about fair value measurements.  There is no financial 
impact. 

1 Jan 2013 

 
AASB 119 Employee Benefits 

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), 
making changes to the recognition, presentation and 
disclosure requirements. 

The Department does not have any defined benefit plans, 
and therefore the financial impact will be limited to the 
effect of discounting annual leave and long service leave 
liabilities that were previously measured at the 
undiscounted amounts. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 

This Standard supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, introducing a number of 
changes to accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by 
one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.   
The Department has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in 
Associates, introducing a number of changes to 
accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by 
one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.   
The Department has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard 

1 Jan 2014 
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  Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after 

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards 

This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting 
framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements 
for preparing general purpose financial statements.  
 There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 

This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary 
disclosures, the circumstances in which they are to be 
included in the general purpose financial statements of 
not-for-profit entities within the GGS.  The Department will 
be required to disclose additional budgetary information 
and explanations of major variances between actual and 
budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2010-2  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from Reduced Disclosure Requirements 

[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 
116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 
136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 
17, 127, 129 & 1052] 

This Standard makes amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations to introduce 
reduced disclosure requirements for certain types of 
entities.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 
137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. 

AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of 
this Standard to 1 January 2015.  The Department has not 
yet determined the application or the potential impact of 
the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 
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AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054] 

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other 
Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to 
achieve convergence between Australian and New 
Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure 
reporting.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2011-6  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method 
and Proportionate Consolidation – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131] 

This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the 
equity method and proportionate consolidation by 
removing the requirement for the consolidated financial 
statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate 
parent entity to be IFRS compliant, provided that the 
parent entity, investor or venturer and the ultimate or 
intermediate parent entity comply with Australian 
Accounting Standards or Australian Accounting Standards 
– Reduced Disclosure Requirements.  There is no financial 
impact. 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards 
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 
133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17] 

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes 
arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, 
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.  For not-for-
profit entities it applies to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.  The Department 
has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2013 
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AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 
116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 
136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 
12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132] 

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair 
value guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards 
and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in 
September 2011.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 
134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14] 

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of 
issuing AASB 119 in September 2011.  There is limited 
financial impact. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements 

This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements for 
AASB 119 (September 2011).  There is no financial 
impact. 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2012-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair 
Value Measurement - Reduced Disclosure Requirements 
[AASB 3, 7, 13, 140 & 141] 

This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure 
requirements for additional and amended disclosures 
arising from AASB 13 and the consequential amendments 
implemented through AASB 2011-8.  There is no financial 
impact. 

1 Jul 2013 
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AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132] 

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 
to include information that will enable users of an entity’s 
financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential 
effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off 
associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets 
and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial 
position.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
[AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to 
address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the 
offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of 
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and 
that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from Annual Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 
116, 132 & 134 and Int 2] 

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 
consequence of the annual improvements process.   
There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition 
Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8] 

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015.  Further 
amendments are also made to consequential amendments 
arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 
1 January 2015 and to consequential amendments arising 
out of the Standards that will still apply from 
1 January 2013.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2013 
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AASB 2012-7  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 7, 12, 101 
& 127] 

This Standard adds to or amends the Australian 
Accounting Standards to provide further information 
regarding the differential reporting framework and the two 
tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general 
financial statement.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Transition Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 
7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 
128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049, & 2011-
7 and Int 12] 

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 10 and 
related Standards to revise the transition guidance 
relevant to the initial application of those Standards, and to 
clarify the circumstances in which adjustments to an 
entity’s previous accounting for its involvement with other 
entities are required and the timing of such adjustments. 

The Standard was issued in December 2012. 
The Department has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2012-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Other 
Amendments [AASB 1, 2, 8, 10, 107, 128, 133, 134 & 
2011-4] 

This Standard makes various editorial corrections to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements (Tier 2).  These corrections ensure that the 
Standards reflect decisions of the AASB regarding the 
Tier 2 requirements. 

This Standard also extends the relief from consolidation 
and the equity method (in the new Consolidation and Joint 
Arrangements Standards) to entities complying with 
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements.  There is no financial impact 

1 Jul 2013 
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Note 6. Employee benefits expense

Wages and salaries (a)  81 134             74 457            

Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)  7 725               7 145              
 88 859             81 602            

(a)

(b)

Note 7. Supplies and services

Consultants and contractors  27 587             37 396            
Advertising and promotion   905                  728                
Travel  1 854               1 730              
Communication  1 250               1 135              
Consumables  3 083               3 940              
Maintenance  2 474               2 194              
Insurance  680                  341                 
Printing  335                  280                 
Other staff costs  2 690               2 577              
Other   800                  868                

 41 658             51 189            
Note 8. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation
Buildings  1 574               1 199              
Furniture, plant, equipment and vehicles   725                  693                
Computer hardware and software  1 026                825                
Scientific equipment   28                    27                  
Total depreciation  3 353               2 744              

Amortisation
Intangible assets   563                  563                
Total amortisation   563                  563                
Total depreciation and amortisation  3 916               3 307              

Note 9. Accommodation expenses

Lease rentals  1 276               1 111              
Repairs and maintenance   947                 1 085              
Cleaning   504                  442                
Electricity   921                  786                
Refurbishment   450                  392                
Security   263                  256                
Water rates   151                  149                
Other accommodation expenses  396                   316                

 4 908               4 537              

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe
benefits tax component, leave entitlements including superannuation
contribution component.
Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super
Scheme (contributions paid).

The employment on-costs liability is included at note 27 'Provisions'.

Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included at
note 11 'Other Expenses'. 
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Note 10. Grants and subsidies

Mineral and Petroleum Industry   344                  268                
Co-Funded Drilling Scheme (EIS)  3 426               3 740              
WA Regional Research Initiative (EIS)   885                  763                
National Mine Safety Framework Secretariat   59                    195                

 4 714               4 966              
Note 11. Other expenses 

Doubtful debts expense  132                  14                   
Other expenses  275                  153                 

 407                   167                
Note 12. User charges and fees 

Petroleum annual licenses  3 248               6 979              
Mining, prospecting and exploration licenses  7 262               6 654              
Explosives and dangerous goods licenses and fees  9 160               3 050              

 24 243             34 118            
Petroleum Safety  5 717               2 403              
Other fees  3 764                478                

 53 394             53 682            

Note 13. Other revenue

Other funding contributions  2 684               1 316              
Miscellaneous revenue   125                  201                

 2 809               1 517              
Note 14. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Plant equipment and vehicles -                     69                  

Costs of disposal of non-current assets
Plant equipment and vehicles ( 164) ( 22)
Net gain/(loss) ( 164)  47                   

Note 15. Income from  State Government

Appropriation received during the period:
Service appropriation (a)  79 987             78 222            

 79 987             78 222            
Services received free of charge (b)

Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by
agencies:
State Solicitors Office

 - legal services  1 147                945                
Department of Treasury and Finance

 - procurement and accommodation services   328                  307                
Landgate

 - land dealings, land information, valuation services and products   798                  129                
 2 273               1 381              

Royalties for Regions Fund:
 13 177             20 283            
 13 177             20 283            

 95 437             99 886            

Mining Safety Levy 

Exploration Incentive Scheme (c)
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

(a)

(b)

(c)

Note 16. Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Current
Suspense account (a)  1                       97                  
Royalties for Regions Fund (Exploration Incentive Scheme) (b)  453                 1 813               

Safety Levies (c) 4 580 1 653 
MERIWA (e) 1 326 -                   

6 360               3 563               
Non-current
Accrued salaries suspense account (d)  2 560               2 100              

 2 560               2 100              

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Note 17. Receivables

Current
Receivables 9 414               10 420             
Allowance for impairment of receivables ( 145) ( 14)
Accrued revenue  801                  375                 
GST receivable  847                 1 439               
Total Current  10 917             12 220            

Balance at start of period  14                   -                   
Doubtful debts expense  145                  14                   
Amounts written off during the period ( 14)  0 
Balance at end of period  145                  14                   

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:

Funds held pending transfer to Minerals and Energy Research Institute WA 
(MERIWA)

This is a sub-fund within the over-arching 'Royalties for Regions Fund'. The 
recurrent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional 
areas.

Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.  
Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable 
(asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted 
depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability 
during the year.
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are 
recognised as revenue at fair value of the assets and/or services that can 
be reliably measured and which would have been purchased if they were 
not donated.  

This account is to hold monies temporarily, pending identification of the 
purpose for which the funds were received. 

These unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA 
regional areas. The Exploration Incentive Scheme is a State Government 
initiative that aims to encourage exploration in Western Australia for the 
long-term sustainability of the State’s resources sector.

Funds held in the suspense account used only for the purpose of meeting  
the 27th pay in a financial year that occurs every 11 years. 

The recoup of the costs of administering the Safety reforms cannot be 
invoiced until after the end of the financial year. Treasury approval is 
obtained for any overdrawn accounts. (Refer Note 40) 
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Note 18. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)

Current   910                  884                
Non-current  13 912             13 088            

 14 822             13 972            

Note 19. Other assets

Current
Prepayments  1 681               1 106              
Total current  1 681               1 106              

Note 20. Property, plant and equipment

Land
At fair value (a)  86 302             86 383            

Buildings
At fair value (a)   54 829             55 065            

Furniture, plant, equipment and vehicles
At cost  9 459               8 316              
Accumulated depreciation (3 751) (3 054)

 5 708               5 262              

Computer hardware and software
At cost 7 019 6 840 
Accumulated depreciation (5 226) (4 679)

 1 793              2 161 

Scientific equipment
At cost   213                  187                
Accumulated depreciation ( 109) ( 81)

  104                 106 

The department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements relating to receivables.

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in
that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.

                        

107ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13



Notes to the Financial Statements         

For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Works in progress
At cost (b) -                    77                   

Total of property, plant, equipment and vehicles  148 736           149 054          

(a)

(b) Data Centre Facilities and Mt Magnet Office
These items were completed during the year and transferred to Property 
Plant and Equipment.

Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2012 by the Western 
Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).  The valuations 
were performed during the year ended 30 June 2013 and recognised at 30 
June 2013.  In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by 
reference to market values for land: $47,991,250 and buildings: 
$38,720,000.  For the remaining balance, fair value of land and buildings 
was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost. 
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Scientific Works In
Land Buildings equipment Progress Total

2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

86 383  55 065    5 262         2 161            106         77          149 054   
-        -           95              661              26          1 687      2 469       
-         688        1 076         -              -          (1 764) -          
-        -          -             -              -          -          -          

( 980) ( 562) -             ( 3) -          -          (1 545)
-        -          -             -              -          -          -          

 899      1 212      -             -              -          -          2 111       
-        (1 574) ( 725) (1 026) ( 28) -          (3 353)

86 302  54 829    5 708         1 793            104        -          148 736   

Scientific Works In
Land Buildings equipment Progress Total

2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

96 644  36 289    5 761         1 856            133        -          140 683   
 306      -           194           1 151           -           77          1 728       
-        -          -             -              -          -          -          
-        -          -             -              -          -          -          
( 5) -          -             ( 21) -          -          ( 26)
-        -          -             -              -          -          -          

(10 562) 19 975 -             -              -          -          9 413       
-        (1 199) ( 693) ( 825) ( 27) -          (2 744)

86 383  55 065    5 262         2 161            106         77          149 054   

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting 
period are set out in the table below:

Computer 
hardware and 
software

Furniture, 
plant, 
equipment 
and vehicles

Additions
Transfers from work in progress

Other Disposals
Reclassification 

Transfers to operating expenditure

Furniture, 
plant, 
equipment 
and vehicles

Computer 
hardware and 
software

Carrying amount at the start of 
year

Revaluation 
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

Reclassification 
Revaluation increments
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

Carrying amount at the start of 
Additions
Transfers from work in progress
Transfers to operating expenditure
Other Disposals
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Note 21. Intangible assets 

Computer software
At cost  4 450               4 456              
Accumulated amortisation (3 026) (2 469)
Total intangible assets                 1 424                 1 987 

Reconciliation:
Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period  1 987               2 551              
Additions -                   -                   
Disposals -                   -                   
Amortisation expense ( 563) ( 563)
Carrying amount at end of period                 1 424                 1 987 

Note 22. Impairment of assets

Note 23. Payables

Current
Trade payables 2 180 3 262 
Accrued salaries 1 927 1 790 
Accrued expenses   462                 238 
Total current  4 569               5 290              

Note 24. Other current liabilities

Unclaimed monies  1 979               1 775              
 1 979               1 775              

Note 25. Revenue received in advance

Licenses and fees  1 575               5 128              
 1 575               5 128              

Note 26.  Amounts due to the Treasurer  (a)

Non Current
Amounts due to the Treasurer 963 -                   

963 -                   
(a)  Mine Rehabilitation Fund

Department of Mines and Petroleum

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment, 
infrastructure or intangible assets at 30 June 2013.

The department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful 
life during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were no 
intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2013 have either been classified as assets held 
for sale or written-off.
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Note 27. Provisions

Current 
Employee benefits provision

Annual leave (a)  8 681               7 556              
Long service leave (b)  10 092             9 546              
Deferred salary scheme (d) -                     33                  

 18 773             17 135            
Other provisions

Employment on-costs provision (c)   165                  159                
  165                  159                

 18 938             17 294            
Non-current
Employee benefits provision

Long service leave (b)  3 946               3 284              
Deferred salary scheme (d)   17                    4                    

 3 963               3 288              
Other provisions

Employment on-costs provision (c)   34                    30                  
  34                    30                  

 3 997               3 318              

(a)

 6 147               5 214              
 2 534               2 342              
 8 681               7 556              

(b)

 3 892               3 691              
 10 146             9 139              
 14 038             12 830            

(c)

(d)

-                     33                  
  17                   4                     
  17                    37                  

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

Within 12 months of end of reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end 
of the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the 
liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is 
no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of 
the liabilities will occur as follows:

The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the 
payment of employment on-costs including workers compensation 
insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. 
The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance 
cost), is disclosed in note 11 'Other expenses'. 
Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where 
there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months 
after the reporting period.  Actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as 
follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period  189                    176 
Additional provisions recognised  199  189 
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits ( 189) ( 176)
Carrying amount at end of period   199                  189                

Note 28. Equity

Contributed equity

Balance at start of period  55 985             55 684            

Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation  1 325               -                   

Other contributions by owners: 
Land transferred to other agencies at fair value (a) -                     306                

Transfer of net assets from other agencies 

Total contributions by owners 1 325                 306                

Distributions to owners
Transfer of net assets to other agencies. (a) ( 630) ( 5)

( 750) -                   

Total distributions to owners (1 380) ( 5)
Balance at end of period  55 930             55 985            

(a)

Reserves

Asset revaluation surplus

Balance at start of period  111 028          101 615           
Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
   Land   899                (10 562)
   Buildings  1 212              19 975 
Balance at end of period  113 139           111 028          

Movements in other provisions

The Government holds the equity interest in the department on behalf of the 
community.  Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the 
department. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity 
resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

This represents land and buildings transferred through the Valuer General's
valuation report. 

Transfer of land and building for sale to the Department of Regional 
Development and Lands.

112ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13



                        

Notes to the Financial Statements      

For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Accumulated Surplus

Balance at start of period 15 791 6 427 

Result for the period 7 014               9 364               
Balance at the end of period 22 805             15 791             

Total Equity at the end of period  191 874           182 804          

Note 29. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

Reconciliation of cash

Cash on hand  16                    16                   
Operating account 37 379             31 591             
Cash and cash equivalents 37 395             31 607             
Restricted cash assets (refer note 16) 8 920               5 663               

46 315             37 270             

Net cost of service (88 423) (90 522)

Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 916 3 307 
Resources received free of charge 2 273 1 381 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets  164 ( 47)

(Increase)/Decrease in assets
Current Receivables (a)  711 (4 850)
Other assets ( 575)  21 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables (a) ( 721) ( 449)
Other liabilities  204 ( 95)
Revenue received in advance (3 553) 2 365 
Provisions - employee benefits 2 323 1 340 
Net GST payments (b)  901 ( 120)
Change in GST in receivables/payables (c) ( 311) ( 296)

Net cash used in operating activities (83 091) (87 965)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/
(used in) operating activities

Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in
respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of sale/purchase of
non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part
of the reconciling items. 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as
follows:

This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 

This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Note 30. Services provided free of charge

MERIWA (Building services, parking, conferences)  44                    38                   

Note 31. Commitments 

Capital expenditure commitments

Within 1 year  910                 2 634               
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2 860               2 808               

 3 770               5 442              

The capital commitments include amounts for:
Computer hardware, software and buildings 3 770               5 442               

 3 770               5 442              

Lease commitments

Within 1 year 2 002               1 971               
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4 311               5 303               
Later than 5 years  539                  697                 

 6 852               7 971              
Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases  6 852               7 971              

Note 32. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities:

During the period the following services were provided to other agencies free of
charge for functions outside the normal operations of the department:

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the reporting
period but not recognised in the financial statements are payable as follows:

These commitments are exclusive of GST.

Contaminated sites

The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the
financial statements:

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003,  the department is required to report 
known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment 
and Conservation (DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these 
sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment and 
environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated – 
remediation required or possibly contaminated – investigation required,  the 
department may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation 
expenses.

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure
additional to the amounts reported in the financial statements, are payable as
follows:
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Other matters of uncertainty

Contingent assets

Note 33. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

Note 34. Remuneration of senior officers

2013 2012
$50 001 to $60 000 -   1                                        
$140 001 to $150 000 -   1                                        
$150 001 to $160 000   3          1                                        
$160 001 to $170 000   2          1                                        
$170 001 to $180 000   1          3                                        
$180 001 to $190 000   4          2                                        
$210 001 to $220 000 -   3                                        
$220 001 to $230 000   3          1                                        
$230 001 to $240 000   2        -
$240 001 to $250 000 -   1                                        
$250 001 to $260 000   2          1                                        
$260 001 to $270 000   1          1                                        
$280 001 to $290 000 -   1                                        
$350 001 to $360 000 -   1                                        
$360 001 to $370 000   1        -

Total remuneration of senior officers: 3 999               3 687 

There are no other known contingent assets.

The number of senior officers whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the
following bands are:

During the year the department did not identify any further potential 
contaminated sites. Of the 16 identified, 3 were identified as "suspected", as 
opposed to "potential" and have now been officially reported to the Department 
of Environment and Conservation. These have yet to be classified. The 
department is unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process, 
and accordingly, it is not practicable to estimate the potential financial effect or 
to identify the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows. 
Whilst there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future expenses that may 
be incurred in the remediation of these sites, the department may apply for 
funding from the Contaminated Sites Management Account to undertake 
further investigative work or to meet remediation costs that may be required.

No known event occurred after the balance sheet date which materially affects
the results reflected in these financial statements.

The department is currently involved in 3 legal cases, depending on the 
outcomes this may result in a contingent liability for costs of $1.7m, or a 
contingent benefit of $0.8m
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2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Base remuneration and superannuation 2 878               2 684               
Annual leave and long service leave accruals  417                  369                 
Other benefits  704                  634                 
Total remuneration of senior officers 3 999               3 687               

Note 35. Remuneration of Auditor

 151                  151                 Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators.  

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for
the current financial year is as follows:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the
department in respect of senior officers.
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Note 36. Explanatory Statement

Total appropriations provided to deliver services

2013 2013
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Resources Sector and Dangerous Goods Regulation 110 644 104 516 (6 128) (a)

(a)

2013 2012
Actual Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
104 516 94 941 9 575 (a)

40 110 50 827 (10 717) (b)

(a)

(b)

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 
income and expense as presented in the financial statement 
titled 'Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and 
Income Estimates' are shown below: Significant variations are 
considered to be those greater than 10% or $5 million for 
Controlled and 10% or $32 million for Administered. 

Resources Sector and Dangerous Goods Regulation - The 
underspend occurred through the inability to fill positions with 
staff of sufficient skills and experience, combined with the 
continual turnover of staff. Additionally there was a freeze on 
expenditure by Government in 2012/13.

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012

Although there was no significant variance in the total 
appropriation, there were significant offsetting variances in the 
following service expenditure:

Resources Sector and Dangerous Goods Regulation
Geoscience Information and Advice

Resources Sector and Dangerous Goods Regulation  - the 
increase is mainly attributable to the ongoing implementation 
of the regulatory reform framework for resources safety  and 
the further development of the integrated approvals system.

Geoscience Information and Advice - The variance mainly 
reflects reduced Exploration Incentive Scheme expenditure on 
data analysis and publications rather than the previous years 
high cost surveys.

Although there was no significant variance in the total 
appropriation, there were significant offsetting variances in the 
following service expenditure:
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Department of Mines and Petroleum

Capital contribution
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013

No significant variance in Capital contribution

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012

No significant variance in Capital contribution

Total administered transactions

2013 2012
Actual Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
8 327 24 277 (15 950) (a)

(a)

Administered Income

2013 2013
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
4 953 200    4 517 912 ( 435 288) (a)

(a)

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012
2013 2012

Actual Actual Variance
$000 $000 $000

4 517 912    4 433 965  83 947       (a)

(a)

No significant variance in total administered transactions.

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012

Total appropriation provided to deliver services for the year

Royalties 

Royalties - The increase in Royalties is mainly attributable to 
an increase in the collection of iron ore royalties and other 
minerals offset by a decrease in gold. 

Total appropriation provided to deliver services for the year - 
The decrease in appropriation in 2012/13 is attributable to 
reduced funding for Mining Tenement Refunds  due to a one 
off provision of $16m in 2011/12. 

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013

Royalties 

Royalties - The decrease in income is mainly attributable to a 
decrease in the collection of iron ore royalties. This is due to  
the Australian dollar being higher than expected, when 
compared to US dollar, for most of the year and volatile prices 
for iron ore and other commodities.
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Note 37. Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk

(b) Categories of financial instruments

2013 2012
$000 $000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 37 395   31 607   
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8 920     5 663     
Loans and receivables (a) 24 892   24 753   

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 7 511     7 065     
(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Financial instruments held by the department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash
equivalents, loans and receivables, payables, WATC/Bank borrowings, finance leases and Treasurer's
advances. The department has limited exposure to financial risks. The department’s overall risk management
program focuses on managing the risks identified below. 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the department’s receivables defaulting on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the department. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment, as shown
in the table at note 37 (c) and note 17 'Receivables'.

Credit risk associated with the department's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the
amounts receivable for services (holding account) and Safety Levies. For receivables other than government, the
department trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The department has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the department’s exposure to bad
debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk arises when the department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
department is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. 

The department has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the department's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The department does not trade in
foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. Other than as detailed in the interest rate
sensitivity analysis table at Note 37 (c), the department is not exposed to interest rate risk because the majority
of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and it has no borrowings other than
the Treasurer's advance (non interest bearing).

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are:
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Credit risk

Ageing analysis of financial assets

Past due but not impaired

Carrying 
Amount

Not past due 
and not 

impaired
up to 1 
month 1-3 months

3 months 
to 1 year 1-5 years

Impaired 
financial 

assets (b)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2013
Cash and cash equivalents  37 395    37 395           -         -               -          -        -            
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 8 920       8 920             

-         -               -          -        -            

Receivables (a)  10 070    8 610              279        987               43           6            145         
Amounts receivable for services  14 822    14 822           -         -               -          -        -            

 71 207    69 747            279        987              43           6  145          

2012
Cash and cash equivalents  31 607    31 607           -         -               -          -        -            
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 5 663       5 663             

-         -               -          -        -            

Receivables (a)  10 781    10 263             304        194              5             1           14            
Amounts receivable for services  13 972    13 972           -         -               -          -        -            

 62 023    61 505            304        194              5             1            14            

Department of Mines and Petroleum

 (c) Financial instrument disclosures

The following table details the department’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets.
The department’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired
and impaired financial assets.  The table is based on information provided to senior management of the department.

The department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it
holds.

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
(b) Five debtors are under administration and it is unknown if any of the amounts owing will be recovered as of 30 June 
2013. The carrying amount of the receivables before deducting the impairment loss was $145,059.
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Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

Non- 
interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

 3 
months 

to 1 
year 1-5 years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents -          37 395 -      -       37 395  37 395  -        -     -      -        
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents -          8 920   

-      -      
8 920     8 920    

-        -     -      -        

Receivables (a) -          10 070 -      -       10 070  10 070   9 034     987     43        6          
Amounts receivable 
for services -          14 822 -      -       14 822  14 822  -        -       910     13 912  

 71 207 -      -       71 207  71 207   9 034     987     953     13 918  

Financial Liabilities

Payables -          4 569   -      -      4 569     4 569     4 569   -     -      -        
Unclaimed monies -          1 979   -      -      1 979     1 979     1 979   -     -      -        
Amounts due to the 
Treasurer -           963     -      -       963        963      -        -     -        963      

 7 511   -      -       7 511    7 511     6 548   -     -        963      

Department of Mines and Petroleum

The following table discloses the department's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure
section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities (a)

(a) the amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Department of Mines and Petroleum

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

Non-
interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

 3 
months 

to 1 
year 1-5 years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2012
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents -          31 607 -      -       31 607  31 607  -        -     -      -        
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents -          5 663   -      -       5 663    5 663    -        -     -      -        

Receivables (a) -          10 781 -      -       10 781  10 781   10 781 -     -      -        
Amounts receivable 
for services -          13 972 -      -       13 972  13 972  -        -       884     13 088  

62 023  -      -      62 023  62 023   10 781  -      884     13 088   

Financial Liabilities
Payables -          5 290   -      -      5 290     5 290     5 290   -     -      -        
Unclaimed monies -          1 775   -      -      1 775     1 775     1 775   

7 065    -      -      7 065    7 065     7 065    -     -      -        

(a) the amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities (a)
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
$000 $000

Note 38. Related bodies

Note 39. Affiliated bodies

Note 40. Special purpose accounts

Special Purpose Accounts - section 16 (1)(c) of FMA

Survey of Leases under the Mining Act (1978)  Fund

Balance at start of period  178              178

Add receipts -               -               
-               -               

Less payments
Refunds

-               -               
Balance at end of period  178               178              

Departmental Receipts in Suspense Fund

Environmental Called-In Performance Bond Money Fund

Balance at start of period  6 617            5 974           

Add receipts
Bonds, Securities   44                 643             

  44                 643             
Less payments

Operational expenses
-               -               

Balance at end of period  6 661            6 617           

Department of Mines and Petroleum

The department had no related bodies as defined in the Financial 
Management Act 2006  and Treasurer's Instruction 951.

The department had no affiliated bodies as defined in the Financial 
Management Act 2006  and Treasurer's Instruction 951.

The account is to hold called-in performance bond monies received in
respect to section 126 of the Mining Act (1978) . Funds are to be used to
provide for the rehabilitation of mining sites.

This account is to hold monies temporarily, pending identification of the
purpose for which the funds were received. The balance of the account is
$2,644.

Survey fees collected under the Mining Act (1978)  are paid into this 
account. The actual cost of surveys is charged to the Consolidated 
Account, and fees previously collected are transferred to the Consolidated 
Account.  If the applicant decides not to proceed with the survey, the fee 
collected is refunded. 
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Special Projects Fund 

Balance at start of period  3 123             403             

Add receipts
Contribution from Government & Industry  6 016            2 986           

 6 016            2 986           
Less payments

Salaries   105               40               
Travel   38                 16               
Consultants  2 096             192             
Grants  1 525           -               
Other   46                 18               

 3 810             266             

Balance at end of period  5 329            3 123           

Mines Safety Levy

Balance at start of period 2 596            (3 709)

Add receipts
Contribution from Industry  26 704          30 668         

 26 704          30 668         
Less  payments
Salaries  10 990          9 500           
Operational Expenditure  13 639          14 863         

 24 629          24 363         

Balance at end of period 4 671 2 596 

The account was created to hold funds for the purpose of participating in 
significant projects with other countries, the Commonwealth and the 
private sector to the mutual benefit of the other participants and the State 
of Western Australia.

This account includes an agreement between the Commonwealth and the 
department to carry out inspection services at Christmas Island. With an 
opening balance of $79,629, $53,371 receipts and $131,526 payments, 
giving a closing balance of $1,474.

This fund is to hold all levies received from mining companies and is to be
applied to the cost of  administering the Mines Safety and Inspection Act 
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
$000 $000

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Safety Levy

Balance at start of period ( 943) -               

Add receipts
Contribution from Industry  5 701             902             

 5 701             902             
Less  payments
Salaries  2 613             796             
Operational Expenditure  2 237            1 049           

 4 850            1 845           

Balance at end of period ( 92) ( 943)

Note 41. Supplementary financial information

(a) Write Offs

The accountable authority   14               -               
The Minister -               -               
Executive Council -               -               

  14               -               

(b) Losses Through theft, defaults and other causes

Amount recovered -               -               
-               -               

(c) Gifts of Public Property
Gifts of public property provided by the department -               -               

Losses of public money and public and other property through theft or default

During the financial year the following amounts were written off under the
authority of:

The Levy invoices are not collected until after the end of the financial year.
Treasury approval was obtained for the overdrawn account.

This fund is to hold all levies which are applied to the cost of
administering the Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Safety Levies for
regulatory services under the Petroleum and Geothermal Energy
Resource Act 1967 (PGERA67) and the Petroleum Pipelines Act 1969
(PPA69).
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses 
Petroleum (Submerged Lands) Act 1982  3 054  4 391 -             -              3 054  4 391
Refunds of previous years' revenue  10 389  10 135 -             -              10 389  10 135
Services and contracts  3 481  4 008   15 -              3 496  4 008
Receipts paid into Consolidated Account 4 337 342 4 488 544 -             -             4 337 342 4 488 544
Grants and subsidies  2 316   984   340   334  2 656  1 318
Total administered expenses 4 356 582 4 508 062   355  334           4 356 937  4 508 396     

Income
For transfer:
Royalties and Rentals (a) 4 517 912 4 433 965 -             -             4 517 912 4 433 965
Regulatory fees  6 404  1 866 -             -              6 404  1 866
Commonwealth Grants  6 500  2 700 -             -              6 500  2 700
Appropriations  7 987  23 943   340   334  8 327  24 277
Other revenue   777  1 516   11   8   788  1 524
Total administered income 4 539 580 4 463 990   351   342 4 539 931 4 464 332     

(a) Royalties
    Petroleum - State  18 024  18 027
    Iron Ore 3 852 561 3 776 076
    Diamonds  17 732  15 938
    Alumina  64 764  68 185
    Mineral sands  26 632  19 923
    Nickel  88 637  92 089
    Gold  213 967  234 316
    Other  144 596  118 797
    Lease rentals  90 999  90 614

Total  4 517 912 4 433 965

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Resource Sector and 
Dangerous Goods 

Regulation

Geoscience Information 
and Advice

Total

Note 42. Disclosure of administered income and expenses by service

126ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13



Notes to the Financial Statements      

For the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
$000 $000

43. Administered assets and liabilities

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  4 809  16 236
Receivables (a) 1 250 989 1 060 669
Restricted cash  12 169  10 119
Finance Lease Receivable   489   461
Other Assets -                -               
Total Administered Current Assets 1 268 456 1 087 485

Non-Current Assets
Finance Lease Receivable  7 753  8 242
Total Administered Non-Current Assets  7 753  8 242

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE ASSETS 1 276 209 1 095 727

Current Liabilities
Payments received in advance   123   123
Accounts payable   53   148
Other liabilities   55   55
GST payable ( 753) 1 665 
Total Administered Current Liabilities ( 522)  1 991

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE LIABILITIES ( 522)  1 991

(a)

Other matters of uncertainty

Department of Mines and Petroleum

Mining companies owing royalties of $2 million are currently under 
administration and action is being taken to recover the funds that 
were due in the quarter that they went into receivership. In the 
event that these funds are not collected, a bad debt may arise.

A company is in dispute over the correct royalty rate payable.  
Depending on the outcome, this may result in a loss of the royalty 
paid to date $10.3m or an extra $5.16m being received.

This mainly represents royalties not collected as at 30 June 2013
on production which occurred prior to balance date.
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Disclosure and legal compliance

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIVES
During the 2012-13 financial year, the department did not receive any Ministerial Directives.

OTHER FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES 

Pricing Policies of Services Provided

The department’s user charges and fees are reviewed annually in accordance with the 
government’s policy on the costing and pricing of government services. A robust costing 
methodology is used to determine the projected costs of service delivery, with particular attention 
to the level of cost recovery being achieved. Any increases in user fees and charges are limited to 
the extent of cost recovery.

Capital Projects 

Two projects were completed during the year, the Data Centre Hosting Facility at a cost of 
$1,095,824 and the new Mount Magnet Mining Registrar’s office costing $688,185. 

Act of Grace Payments 

During the 2012-13 period, thirteen (13) Act of Grace payments totalling $45,165 were made 
arising from applications for land applied for which was not available for granting.
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